
PUBLIC NOTICE
ANNUAL MEETING

Chair Appointed Members

ERIC SCHERTZING DEBBIE DE LEON, Vice-Chair
REBECCA BAHAR-COOK, Secretary

Vice-Chair DEB NOLAN

DEBBIE DE LEON BRIAN MC GRAIN

Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority
422 Adams Street, Lansing Michigan 48906 517.267.5221 Fax 517.267.5224

THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY WILL MEET ON
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2012 AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE PERSONNEL CONFERENCE
ROOM (D&E), HUMAN SERVICES BUILDING, 5303 S. CEDAR, LANSING

Agenda
Call to Order
Approval of Minutes – December 5, 2011
Additions to the Agenda
Limited Public Comment – 3 minutes per person

1. Election of officer - Motion
a. The chair is the County Treasurer per Section 4

of the Intergovernmental Agreement
b. Vice-Chairperson (optional)
c. Secretary
d. Treasurer

2. Conflict of Interest
a. Compliance with article three subsection 3.6

Signature on form

3. Resolution to Amend Bylaws Section 3.3

4. Resolution to Approve Rental Property Guidelines

5. Specific Tax Pledge to Brownfield for 1621 E. Michigan Ave
Karl Dorshimer/Pat Gillespie Variance

6. Audit Engagement Letter

7. Property maintenance, renovation & development
a. Residential Property Update
b. Commercial Property Update
c. NSP2 Update-expenditure deadline
d. PROP Update
e. Garden Program
f. General legal update- Counsel



8. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
a. Accounts Payable Approval – December 2011
b. Accounts Payable Approval – January 2012
c. Monthly Statement – November 30, 2011

Announcements
Public Comment – 3 minutes per person
Adjournment

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES OR OTHER ELECTRONIC
DEVICES OR SET TO MUTE OR VIBRATE TO AVOID

DISRUPTION DURING THE MEETING



Page 1 of 6

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

December 5, 2011
Minutes

Members Present: Eric Schertzing, Comm. Bahar-Cook, Comm. Nolan and Comm.
McGrain;

Members Absent: Comm. DeLeon

Others Present: Mary Ruttan, Tim Perrone, Joe Bonsall, Sandy Gower, Paul
Joseph, Dawn-Marie Joseph

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Schertzing at 5:06 p.m. Conference
Room D & E of the Human Services Building, 5303 S. Cedar, Lansing.

Approval of the November 7, 2011 Minutes

MOVED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, SUPPORTED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, TO
APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 7, 2011 MINUTES.

Comm. McGrain requested the words “or low-income development” be added to the end
of the first paragraph on page two. He also requested section four of the minutes be
changed to clarify that a CHDO would be an independent non-profit and not “under the
umbrella” of the Land Bank.

MOTION, AS AMENDED, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon

Additions to the Agenda: None

Limited Public Comment: None

1. Resolution to Authorize Chairman to Negotiate and Execute Purchase
Agreement on 122 W. Grand river, Williamston

Chairperson Schertzing noted the Josephs were not yet in attendance and suggested
the item be held until their arrival.

2. Resolution to Approve the Employee Paid Time Off/Leave Policy

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN, TO ADOPT THE
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EMPLOYEE PAID TIME OFF/LEAVE POLICY.



Page 2 of 6

Comm. Nolan inquired as to the source of the language used in the resolution.
Executive Director Ruttan stated the language was taken from the agreement between
Ingham County and the ICEA Union and the Management Employees. Executive
Director Ruttan stated the policy would apply to the Property Maintenance Coordinator,
Property Sales Coordinator, Garden Program Coordinator, and Receptionist positions.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon

3. Priorities, Policies and Procedures
3a. Residential Land Transfers

Executive Director Ruttan stated the documents were presented for review and
discussion. Comm. McGrain asked if section 9, requiring a narrative description of
future use was necessary for residential properties. Executive Director Ruttan stated
these Priorities, Policies and Procedures are intended to guide staff when approached
by the public about properties not actively listed for sale by the Land Bank and in those
cases, intended future/end use is a factor in the process. A discussion of how the City of
Lansing Master Plan interacts was undertaken without action.

3b. Attorney General Cox Opinion #7255

Chairperson Schertzing stated the opinion relates to the Wayne County Land Bank’s
Turbo Program.

4. The ReBuilding Exchange, Chicago
4a. Other Deconstruction Opportunities

Chairperson Schertzing presented a partnership proposal from the ReBuilding
Exchange, Chicago. ReBuilding Exchange is a non-profit building material reuse
organization that obtains its materials from sustainable deconstruction projects. They
propose to partner with the Land Bank to deconstruct approximately five homes per
month and transport those materials to their Chicago location for resale. Chairperson
Schertzing stated the proposal intends to match our supply of materials with their
demand for them. We have had difficulty doing deconstruction in any real volume
because it is more expensive than demolition and there are only a handful of
contractors in the area with any experience. He stated another issue of concern was
exporting materials not just outside of the immediate area, but out of the state. Comm.
Bahar-Cook stated that would be preferable to seeing all the materials go into a landfill.
Comm. McGrain inquired if there was an in-state option for this type of activity.
Chairperson Schertzing stated there are a few in Detroit and Saginaw but they have
relied primarily on prison re-entry programs to subsidize the labor costs.



Page 3 of 6

5. Property Maintenance, Renovation & Development
5a. Property Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated information was included in the packet concerning NSP2
rehab projects. He stated the Land Bank has already closed on 35 home sales for the
year, including a woman from St Johns who recently purchased our home at 1609 N
Genesee in Lansing. Executive Director Ruttan stated the Land Bank has met the 50%
expenditure requirement for NSP2.

5b. 1621 E Michigan Avenue

Chairperson Schertzing distributed an email from Ken Szmusiak of Lansing EDC and
stated he had requested Mr. Szmusiak to be in attendance. The City approved a
brownfield plan for the property, but did not factor in the Land Bank’s 5/50 tax capture.
The City is requesting the Land Bank give up/return its capture. Comm. Nolan asked
how much money we would be giving back. Chairperson Schertzing stated it would be
approximately $15,000/year. Chairperson Schertzing stated he had mentioned this
issue to the City several times before their plan was finalized. Comm. McGrain asked
how a mistake like this happens. Chairperson Schertzing stated this is the first time this
issue has come up in the City. Comm. McGrain asked if staff had plans for the money.
Executive Director Ruttan stated the expected capture was included in budget. Comm.
McGrain stated the board should not take any action until the City EDC can be in
attendance to discuss the situation in more detail.

5c. CHDO Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated a meeting with MSHDA would be held in the coming
week to discuss the issue and a possible tri-county aspect. Comm. Nolan asked why a
county-wide option would not be preferable. Chairperson Schertzing responded by
stating a tri-county component might work well with other regional entities such as Tri-
County Regional Planning and LEAP. Further, the issues that impact Lansing and
Ingham County don’t stop at Waverly Rd and Sheridan Rd. We need a mechanism to
be able to cross those boundaries. Also, a tri-county entity would be able to bring in
more resources to the region. That being said, it may turn out that politics make such an
entity impractical; we are merely in the discussion phase. Comm. Nolan asked when the
issue might come back to the board. Chairperson Schertzing responded it would likely
come back before the board in February.

5d. General Legal Update – Counsel

Mr. Perrone informed the board all requested documents have been provided in the
Maiz civil rights case and we are awaiting the investigator’s decision. The Land Bank
has received notice of a bankruptcy filing by one of our land contract buyers. The
bankruptcy stems from a car loan and the party has indicated their intent to satisfy the
terms of the land contract. The two land contract forfeiture cases continue in their



Page 4 of 6

redemption period, with both purchasers expressing intent to redeem. The soil issue is
still pending.

6. Community Development
6a. Community Outreach – Lunch-N-Learn

Chairperson Schertzing stated Kimberly Whitfield would be hosting a lunch meeting on
January 11th at the Neighborhood Empowerment Center and has invited the
neighborhood associations to send representatives. All board members are welcome to
attend.

6b. Tri-County Regional Planning Sustainable Communities Planning Grant

Chairperson Schertzing stated the grant application, which included Land Bank
activities as matching funds, was successful.

1. Resolution to Authorize Chairman to Negotiate and Execute Purchase
Agreement on 122 W. Grand River, Williamston

Chairperson Schertzing introduced Paul and Dawn-Marie Joseph and invited them to
share their proposal with the board. Mr. Joseph presented the board with information
regarding their other existing business ventures in Williamston. Comm. Nolan
commented that she had recently had a wonderful dinner at Gracie’s Place, which is
also owned by the Josephs. He stated his belief that one thing downtown Williamston is
lacking is a neighborhood bar and the availability of three liquor licenses. Mrs. Joseph
stated their proposed bar/pub would employ approximately 10-12 people. Comm.
McGrain asked what the experience with Land Bank staff had been like. Mrs. Joseph
stated she had experienced difficulty obtaining a form and having Executive Director
Ruttan return her phone calls. Comm. McGrain asked if the Josephs had been aware of
the appraised value of the property when they made their $20,000 offer. Mrs. Joseph
stated they were aware of the amount, but did not have a copy of the full appraisal.

MOVED BY COMM. NOLAN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, TO APPROVE
THE RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO NEGOTIATE AND
EXECUTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT ON 122 W. GRAND RIVER, WILLIAMSTON.

Chairperson Schertzing stated policy calls for the sales prices to be within 70% of
appraised value. Comm. Bahar-Cook inquired what expenses the Land Bank had in the
property. Chairperson Schertzing stated the purchase price was approximately $15,000,
plus current year taxes around $6,000, plus $1,800 for the appraisal.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon



Page 5 of 6

6c. Fund 202 – Dollar Home Program – 2012 Projections

Executive Director Ruttan provided an overview of the information in the packet. She
stressed revenues generated by the Dollar Home Program must be utilized for some
public purpose or another home renovation.

6d. Capital Community Bike Share Program – Martinez Consulting Group Contract
Chairperson Schertzing informed the board the focus of the group has transitioned to
finding corporate partners and finding ways to dovetail the program with the HUD
Sustainable Communities Planning Grant. He also stated the contract with Martinez
Consulting Group is being extended another two months. Comm. Nolan inquired how
long we would wait for other funding sources to materialize. Chairperson Schertzing
stated a couple of months; through the first quarter of 2012.

6e. December 8th, Holiday Event – 934 Clark St

Chairperson Schertzing reminded the board to keep this item on their calendars;
remarks are scheduled for 5:00pm. The building has already been covered in the LSJ
and Community News. Additional media coverage is expected.

Comm. Nolan requested an update on PROP and the Sidelot Program. Executive
Director Ruttan stated finding interested parties who also have the necessary capital
continues to be an issue for PROP. Joseph Bonsall stated the Land Bank has a
purchase offer for a vacant sidelot on Clifford and has an interested party for vacant
land on Rheamount.

7. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
7a. Accounts Payable Approval – November 2011

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK TO
APPROVE THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR NOVEMBER 2011.

Comm. McGrain disclosed that he works for CEDAM.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon

7b. Monthly Statement – October 2011

The October 2011 monthly financial statement was received and placed on file.

Announcements:

Executive Director Ruttan responded to Mrs. Joseph’s allegation that she was unable to
obtain information from Land Bank staff. The form Mrs. Joseph requested was a
standard real estate form that should be familiar to anyone as experienced in real estate



Page 6 of 6

development as the Josephs. In a typical transaction, this form is provided by the
purchaser, not the seller. Staff only provides those materials in situations such as the
Sidelot Program when we deal with inexperienced buyers who would be expected to
have difficulty providing the form themselves. Executive Director Ruttan further stated
she had had numerous communications, both via telephone and email with the Josephs
concerning their proposal.

Comm. Bahar-Cook thanked Comm. DeLeon for offering to give up her seat so that
Comm. Bahar-Cook could remain on the board for another term.

Limited Public Comment:

Sandy Gower, Economic Development Coordinator for Ingham County, updated the
board on the Ash St project in Mason. She stated a brownfield plan is being developed
and is expected to be completed by the end of the year. This plan will be suitable for
any developer the Land Bank chooses to work with.

The meeting adjourned at 6:26 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph Bonsall



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE BYLAWS, SECTION 3.3 TERM OF OFFICE, OF
THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION #12-01

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq.,
(Athe Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast
Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and
responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank
Fast Track Authority (the “Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the County Board Of Commissioners requested the change to the Bylaws;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority approves the proposed amendment to
strike the last sentence in section 3.3 and add the new language as stated in Exhibit 1.

Aye:
Nay:
Absent:



Exhibit 1

3.3 Term of Office. The Treasurer of Ingham County shall serve as an ex officio
member of the Board of Directors without a term. Of the four (4) directors appointed in
accordance with Subsection 3.2 of these Bylaws, one shall be appointed for an initial term
of one (1) year, one shall be appointed for an initial term of two (2) years, one shall be
appointed for an initial term of three (3) years, and one (1) shall be appointed for an initial
term of four (4) years. Upon the expiration of the initial terms, all appointments shall be for
a term of four years. Each director shall continue in office for a term for which he or she is
appointed, or until his or her successor has been appointed and has qualified, or until his
or her early death, resignation, removal or retirement. There shall be no limit on the
number of successive terms of office a director may serve. A director may not be
appointed to or serve more than two (2) consecutive terms of office.



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE RENTAL PROPERTY GUIDELINES OF THE
INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION #12-02

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq.,
(Athe Act@) establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast
Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and
responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank
Fast Track Authority (the “Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track has inventory suitable for future
renovations and currently vacant; and

WHEREAS, vacant property deteriorates quickly and is a source of vandalism and crime;
and

WHEREAS, a property rental program will facilitate efficient use of our inventory; and

WHEREAS, guidelines are required to manage and operate the program,

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority,
approves the proposed Rental Property Guidelines (Exhibit 1) subject to review by the
Land Bank Attorney

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSENT:



Exhibit 1

Obligations of the Leasee

This Section states the obligations of a Leasee

A. Supplying required information.

1. The leasee must supply any information that the Ingham County
Housing Commission or THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST
TRACK AUTHORITY determines is necessary in the administration of
the Lease. Information includes any requested certification, release or
other documentation.

2. The leasee must disclose and verify Social Security Numbers and
must sign and submit consent forms for obtaining information.

3. All information supplied by the leasee must be true and complete.

B. The leasee must allow the Ingham County Housing Commission or THE
INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY to inspect the
premises at reasonable times and after at least 2 calendar days notice
according to state law.

D. Violation of Lease

The leasee may not commit any serious or repeated violation of the lease.

E. Leasee Notice of Move or Lease Termination

In accordance with the Lease, the leasee must notify the Ingham County
Housing Commission before the leasee moves out of the rental premises or
terminates the lease.

F. Use and Occupancy of the Rental Premises

1. The leasee must use the premises for a residence by the leasee.

2. The Ingham County Housing Commission must approve the
composition of the family residing in the premises. The leasee must
request approval from the Ingham County Housing Commission to
add any other family members as an occupant of the premises. No
other person (i.e., no one but members of the family) may reside in
the premises.

3. Members of the household may engage in legal profit making



activities on the premises, but only if such activities are incidental to
primary use of the premises for residence by members of the family.
Any business uses of the premises must comply with the lease,
zoning requirements and the affected household member must obtain
all appropriate licenses.

4. The leasee must not sublease or let the premises.

5. The leasee must not assign the lease or transfer the premises.

G. Crime by Household Members

The members of the household may not engage in drug-related criminal
activity or other violent criminal activity, or other criminal activity that
threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of other occupants
and persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises.

H. Alcohol and/or Drug Abuse By Household Members

The members of the household must not abuse alcohol and/or drugs in a
way that threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of
other occupants and/or persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the
premises.



Grounds for Denial

The Ingham County Housing Commission, on behalf of the INGHAM COUNTY
LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY will deny assistance to applicants who:

A. Do not meet any one or more of the eligibility criteria;

B. Do not supply information or documentation required by the application
process within 10 business days of a request for same;

C. Fail to respond to a written request for information or a request to declare
their continued interest in the program within 10 business days of a request
for same;

D. Fail to complete any aspect of the application or lease-up process;

E. Have a family member who was evicted from federally assisted housing
within the past five years because of drug-related criminal activity. The five
year limit is based on the date of such eviction, not the date the crime was
committed.

However, the Ingham County Housing Commission may admit the household
if the ICHC determines:

1. The evicted household member who engaged in drug-related criminal
activity has successfully completed a supervised drug rehabilitation
program approved by the Ingham County Housing Commission; or

2. The circumstances leading to the eviction no longer exist (for
example, the criminal household member is imprisoned or has died).

F. Have a household member who is currently engaging in illegal use of a drug;

G. Have a household member whose illegal drug use or a pattern of illegal drug
use may threaten the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the
premises by other neighbors;

H. Have a household member who has ever been convicted of drug-related
criminal activity for the manufacture or production of methamphetamine on
the premises of federally assisted housing;

I. Have a household member who is subject to a lifetime registration
requirement under a State sex offender registration program;



J. Have a household member whose abuse or pattern of abuse of alcohol may
threaten the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by
other tenants or persons residing in the immediate vicinity;

K. Have a household member who is a fugitive felon, parole violator or person
fleeing to avoid prosecution, or custody or confinement after conviction, for a
crime, or attempt to commit a crime, that is a felony under the laws of the
place from which the individual flees;

L. Any member of the household was released from prison, parole or probation
within the last five (5) years for any of the following:

1. Any felony;

2. Any drug-related criminal activity;

3. Any violent criminal activity;

4. Any other criminal activity which may threaten the health, safety, or
right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other tenants or
persons residing in the immediate vicinity; or

5. Any other criminal activity which may threaten the health or safety of
the owner, property management staff, or persons performing a
contract administration function or responsibility on behalf of the
INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY
(including an Ingham County Housing Commission employee or an
Ingham County Housing Commission contractor, subcontractor or
agent).

For purposes of this section, a household member is “currently engaged in” criminal
activity if the person has engaged in the behavior recently enough to justify a
reasonable belief that the behavior is current.

An applicant who is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating
violence, or stalking is not an appropriate basis for denial of program
assistance or for denial of admission, if the applicant otherwise qualifies for
assistance or admission. The Ingham County Housing Commission will
require verification in all cases where an applicant claims protection against
an action proposed to be taken by the Authority involving such individual.
Verification must be submitted within 10 business days after receipt of the
ICHC’s request for verification.

M. Have a family member who has been evicted from federally assisted housing
in the last five years that has a history of destruction of property;



N. Have a family member who has committed fraud, bribery, or any other
corrupt or criminal act in connection with any Federal housing program;

O. Have breached an agreement to pay amounts owed in rent to another
landlord;

P. Have engaged in or threatened abusive or violent behavior towards any
INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY staff member,
agent or tenant.

If the Ingham County Housing Commission denies admission on the basis of a
criminal record, the Ingham County Housing Commission will provide the person
with the criminal record (i.e., the family member) and the applicant head of
household with a copy of the criminal record and an opportunity to dispute the
accuracy and relevance of that record, in the procedures for the Informal Review
Process for Applicants. The applicant will have ten (10) business days to dispute
the accuracy and relevance of the record in writing. If the Ingham County Housing
Commission does not receive the dispute within the allotted time, the applicant will
be denied.



MAINTENANCE POLICY

The Maintenance Division of the Ingham County Housing Commission is responsible for
managing the maintenance function in the most cost effective manner possible while
maximizing the useful life of Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority properties and
providing the best service to residents. The following policy statements are designed to
establish the structure of an effective and efficient maintenance system

1.0 COMPONENTS OF A MAINTENANCE SYSTEM

The Ingham County Housing Commission maintenance system shall include certain
components:

1.1 A system of priorities for work requests;

1.2 Comprehensive working procedures;

1.3 Performance goals; and

1.4 A work order system.

By developing a maintenance system that has these components in place, the
Housing Commission will have the tools it needs to control the performance of
maintenance work for the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority.

1.1 PRIORITY SYSTEM

The work priorities adopted by the Ingham County Housing Commission exemplify
its philosophy of delivering maintenance services. This priority system ensures that
the most important maintenance work is done at a time it can be performed most
cost-effectively. Minimizing vacancy loss is part of the cost-effectiveness calculation.
The maintenance priorities of the Ingham County Housing Commission are the
following:

A. Emergencies

B. Scheduled Operations and Services

C. Vacancy Preparation

D. Resident On-Demand Requests



Placing planned maintenance and vacancy preparation work ahead of resident work
requests does not indicate that resident requests are unimportant. It emphasizes the
importance of maintaining control of the maintenance work by performing scheduled
routine and preventive work first. By doing so the Housing Commission will
decrease on-demand work and maintain the property in a manner that will keep and
attract good tenants.

1.2 Develop procedures

The Director of Maintenance will ensure that there are sufficient clear procedures in
place to allow staff to implement this maintenance policy statement. All procedures
will include the following:

A. A statement of purpose;

B. The job title(s) of the staff member(s) responsible for carrying out the
activities in the procedure;

C. Any forms needed to carry out the activities; and

D. The frequency of any specified activities.

After their adoption, maintenance procedures will be reviewed and updated at least
annually.

1.3 Develop performance standards and goals

The Director of Maintenance will establish measures that will allow the effectiveness
of maintenance systems and activities to be evaluated. In establishing these
standards the Housing Commission will take into consideration certain factors:

A. Local housing codes;

B. Ingham County Housing Commission job descriptions.

C. Funding available

Nothing in the documents listed above will prevent the Housing Commission from
setting a standard that is higher than that contained in the documents.

These standards and goals will be used to evaluate current operations and
performance and to develop strategies to improve performance and meet the
standards that have been set.



1.4 Work Order System

The Ingham County Housing Commission shall have a comprehensive work order
system that includes all work request information: source of work, description of
work, priority, cost to complete, days to complete, and hours to perform. This
information is required for the Housing Commission to plan for the delivery of
maintenance services as well as evaluate performance. To obtain the greatest
effectiveness from the work order system, all work requests and activities performed
by maintenance staff must be recorded on work orders.

Work orders will contain, at a minimum, the following information:

A. Preprinted number

B. Source of request (planned, inspection, resident, etc.)

C. Priority assigned

D. Location of work

E. Date and time received

F. Date and time assigned

G. Worker(s) assigned

H. Description of work requested (with task number)

I. Description of work performed (with task number)

J. Estimated and actual time to complete

K. Materials used to complete work

L. Resident charge

M. Resident signature



2.0 MAINTAINING THE PROPERTY

All maintenance work performed on the properties of the ICLB can be categorized
by the source of the work. Each piece of work originates from a particular source --
an emergency, the routine maintenance schedule, the preventive maintenance
schedule, a unit inspection, a unit turnover, or a resident request.

2.1 Responding to Emergencies

Emergencies are the highest priority source of work. The Ingham County Housing
Commission will consider a work item to be an emergency if the following occur:

A. The situation constitutes a serious threat to the life, safety or health of
residents or staff; or

B. The situation will cause serious damage to the property structure or systems
if not repaired within twenty-four (24) hours.

If a staff member is unsure whether or not a situation is an emergency, he or she
will consult with his or her supervisor. If a supervisor is not available, the employee
will use his or her best judgment to make the decision.

For emergencies that occur after regular working hours, the Ingham County Housing
Commission shall have a twenty-four (24) emergency response system in place.
This response system includes the designation of a maintenance employee in
charge for each day as well as a list of qualified pre-approved contractors, open
purchase orders for obtaining required supplies or equipment, and access to
Housing Commission materials and supplies. The designated employee shall
prepare a work order and report on any emergency within twenty-four hours after
abatement of the emergency.

2.2 Prepare Vacant Units for Reoccupancy

It is the policy of the Ingham County Housing Commission to reoccupy vacant units
as soon as possible. This policy allows the ICLB to maximize the income produced
by properties and operate attractive and safe properties.

The Director of Maintenance is responsible for developing and implementing a
system that ensures an average turn-around time of twenty (20) calendar days. In
order to do so, he or she must have a system that can perform the following tasks:

A. Forecast unit preparation needs based on prior years’ experience;



B. Estimate both the cost and process it will take to prepare them; and

C. Control work assignments to ensure prompt completion.

The maintenance procedure for reoccupying vacant units relies on the prompt
notification by management of the vacancy, fast and accurate inspection of the unit,
ready availability of workers and materials, and good communication with those
responsible for leasing the unit.

The Director of Maintenance has the ability to create a special list of outside
contractors to complete all work that goes with unit turnaround that will assure ICLB
goals.

2.3 Resident On-Demand Service

This category of work refers to all resident generated work requests that fall into no
other category. These are non-emergency calls made by residents seeking
maintenance service. These requests for service cannot be planned in advance or
responded to before the resident calls.

It is the policy of the Ingham County Housing Commission to complete these work
requests within seven (7) days. However, unless the request is an emergency or
entails work that compromises the habitability of the unit, these requests will not be
given a priority above scheduled routine and preventive maintenance. By following
this procedure, the Ingham County Housing Commission believes it can achieve
both good resident service and a maintenance system that completes the most
important work first and in the most cost effective manner.

3.0 CONTRACTING FOR SERVICES

The Ingham County Housing Commission will contract for maintenance services when it
is in the best interests of the ICLB to do so. When the employees of the Housing
Commission have the time and skills to perform the work at hand, they will be the first
choice to perform a given task. When the employees of the Housing Commission have
the skills to do the work required, but there is more work than there is time available to
complete it, the Housing Commission will determine whether it is more cost/time
effective to use a contractor to complete the work. If the Housing Commission staff
does not have the skills to complete the work, a contractor will be chosen. All costs for
outside contractors will the financial responsibility of the ICLB.

The Director of Maintenance will work with the appropriate personnel of the ICLB to
facilitate the contract award. The Director will be responsible for the contribution of the
Maintenance Department to this process.













































1/25/12 Property Listings

Current Listings Current Listings Pending Sales
Address Funding Price Address Funding Price Address Funding Price

Type Type Type

122 W. G/R-Wmsnt Comm $71,000.00 1135 Shepard NSP2 69,000.00
1300 Keystone Comm $300,000.00 623 Lathrop NSP2 64,000.00 140 E. Ash/Mason Comm 149,000.00
140 E. Ash/Mason Comm $149,000.00 1216 Allegan N/C NSP2 105,000.00 3620 Wedgewood NSP1 78,000.00
732 W. Columbia CtyNSP $110,000.00 1200 W. Maple NSP2 82,000.00 732 W. Columbia CtyNSP 110,000.00
2029 Hillcrest Home $65,000.00 1221 W. Ottawa N/C NSP2 110,000.00 1417 Sheldon NSP2 63,000.00
1722 Maisonette LB $50,000.00 209 Reo NSP2 79,000.00 5234 Lark Circle NSP1 74,000.00
1724 Maisonette LB $47,000.00 906 Stanley NSP2 64,500.00 618 Lathrop NSP2 54,000.00
1726 Maisonette LB $45,000.00 901 Riverview NSP2 75,000.00 810 Cleveland NSP2 35,000.00
1730 Maisonette LB $47,000.00 1018 N. Jenison NSP2 75,000.00
1740 Maisonette LB $45,000.00 920 W. Willow NSP2 75,000.00 563,000.00
6127 Scotmar LB $50,000.00 1145 N. MLK NSP2 75,000.00
6155 Scotmar LB $47,000.00 1001 N. Jenison NSP2 70,000.00
6159 Scotmar LB $45,000.00 1705 Comfort NSP2 90,000.00
6161 Scotmar LB $47,000.00 1122 Allegan NSP2 70,000.00
1421 Corbett LB $101,000.00 3,772,500.00
533 Denver LB $66,500.00
540 Paris LB $73,500.00
1217 W. Michigan LB $75,000.00
1125 N. Chestnut LB $88,000.00
3704 Maybel LB $72,500.00
1031 Queen NSP1 $58,000.00
1201 Dakin NSP1 $44,500.00 OCOF Pending Closings
3401 Churchill NSP1 $70,000.00 Address
3620 Wedgewood NSP1 $78,000.00
4123 Balmoral NSP1 $75,000.00
5219 Hughes NSP1 $100,000.00 115 E. Mason 84,000.00
5234 Lark Circle NSP1 $74,000.00 3325 Holmes 95,000.00
1417 Sheldon NSP2 $63,000.00 1217 Porter 80,000.00
1525 Hull Court NSP2 $50,000.00 800 Clark 88,000.00
326 Isbell NSP2 $80,000.00 1216 W. Ottawa 96,000.00
618 Lathrop NSP2 $54,000.00
734 Cawood NSP2 $50,000.00 443,000.00
810 Cleveland NSP2 $35,000.00
812 Everett NSP2 $64,000.00
1617 Ohio NSP2 $55,000.00
1806 Vermont NSP2 $59,000.00
1225 Allen NSP2 $65,000.00





January 30, 2012

PROPERTY REHABILITATION & OWNERSHIP PROGRAM (PROP) - UPDATE

There have been two sales of the PROP homes in the last couple of months. The first sale was 1828 W.

Miller Rd. on 12/16/2011 for $14,000. The second was 532 Emily Ave. and the adjacent vacant lot on

1/11/2012 for $29,000. Both were land contract sales with 10% down payments.

The two sales had very similar characteristics in that the buyers were single men working full time with

sufficient income for the land contract payments. They had just fair or poor credit histories and

insufficient assets to handle the cost of improvements necessary for either home. By themselves they

would not have qualified for the purchase. For Miller Rd. the grandmother became a co-buyer and co-

signed the land contract and Emily, the parents did the same. They had the credit, income and assets

available to provide sufficient guarantee of success to complete the sales.

Of the large number of inquiries about the PROP homes these are the only two that have met the

requirements to proceed with other sales. This does not include a few that did but when they learned

of details of the process and condition of the properties offered they realized this was not what they

would be interested in.

Of the remaining six properties offered in PROP, two are being considered for demolition. Additional

homes are currently being selected for the program. We hope to have five ready to be offered for sale

by mid-March at the latest primarily on the East side of the city. Another five or more will follow in

other areas of the city soon after.

Respectfully submitted,

Chris Kolbe

Property Disposition/Sales Coordinator



01/25/2012 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2011 - 12/31/2011

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount

Bank GEN
12/01/2011 6951 BAKER BUILDERS, INC 71,868.00
12/07/2011 6952 CONSUMERS ENERGY 493.53
12/07/2011 6953 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 1,495.43
12/07/2011 6954 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 590.86
12/07/2011 6955 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 759.28
12/07/2011 6956 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 221.75
12/07/2011 6957 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 1,035.63
12/07/2011 6958 CITY OF MASON 16.00
12/07/2011 6959 DELHI TOWNSHIP 13.00
12/07/2011 6960 EDEN GLEN CONDO ASSOCIATION 6,960.00
12/07/2011 6961 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 141,817.11
12/07/2011 6962 GREATER LANSING ASSOCIATION OF REAL 224.00
12/07/2011 6963 LANSING ENTERTAINMENT & FACILITIES 300.00
12/07/2011 6964 CITY OF LANSING 235.00
12/07/2011 6965 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 64.62
12/07/2011 6966 THERMAL INSPECTION SERVICE LLC 100.00
12/07/2011 6967 THE PARMENTER GROUP 500.00
12/07/2011 6968 OETZEL-HARTMAN GROUP 600.00
12/07/2011 6969 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 3,218.50
12/07/2011 6970 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 590.91
12/07/2011 6971 MARK'S LOCK SHOP INC 42.00
12/07/2011 6972 AD'VANTAGE CLEANING 817.76
12/07/2011 6973 KEBS, INC. 400.00
12/07/2011 6974 SWANSON DESIGN STUDIOS 281.25
12/07/2011 6975 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 8,590.00
12/07/2011 6976 KOHLER EXPOS, INC. 705.00
12/07/2011 6977 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 400.00
12/07/2011 6978 SOIL AND MATERIALS ENGINEERS, INC. 714.11
12/07/2011 6979 WARNER NORCROSS & JUDD 45.00
12/07/2011 6980 INTEGRITY LAWN MAINTENANCE 1,250.00
12/07/2011 6981 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,410.00
12/07/2011 6982 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 36,070.00
12/07/2011 6983 ETC 490.00
12/07/2011 6984 THERMAL INSPECTION SERVICE LLC 200.00

12/07/2011 6985 RED CEDAR CONSULTING, LLC 435.00
12/07/2011 6986 ORACLE RESIDENTIAL SERVICES LLC 1,975.00
12/07/2011 6987 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 33,730.00
12/07/2011 6988 THOMAS J KRYCINSKI BUILDERS 10,824.75
12/07/2011 6989 TURN KEY HOME IMPROVEMENT 35,278.00
12/07/2011 6990 MICHIGAN BUILDING AND RESTORATION 12,075.00
12/07/2011 6991 HOMEVIEW IMPROVEMENTS 13,763.00
12/07/2011 6992 NORTHERN HOME IMPROVEMENT 18,855.00
12/07/2011 6993 QUALIFIED CONSTRUCTION CORP 44,084.00
12/07/2011 6994 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 19,185.00
12/07/2011 6995 KEBS, INC. 2,200.00
12/07/2011 6996 ENVIRONMENTAL COSULTING & TRAINING 1,600.00



12/07/2011 6997 FIRST CONTRACTING INC 191,077.00
12/07/2011 6998 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 3,244.00
12/07/2011 6999 METRO DEVELOPMENT CORP. 56,542.85
12/07/2011 7000 SWANSON DESIGN STUDIOS 7,200.00
12/07/2011 7001 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 28,733.39
12/07/2011 7002 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 56.82
12/14/2011 7003 FORK IN THE ROAD 1,500.00
12/19/2011 7004 CONSUMERS ENERGY 332.90
12/19/2011 7005 CONSUMERS ENERGY 929.95
12/19/2011 7006 CONSUMERS ENERGY 435.76
12/19/2011 7007 CONSUMERS ENERGY 770.98
12/19/2011 7008 CONSUMERS ENERGY 616.12
12/19/2011 7009 CONSUMERS ENERGY 506.59
12/19/2011 7010 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 302.60
12/19/2011 7011 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 229.95
12/19/2011 7012 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 469.69
12/19/2011 7013 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 457.23
12/19/2011 7014 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 410.37
12/19/2011 7015 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 202.76
12/19/2011 7016 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 197.86
12/19/2011 7017 SPRINT 253.34
12/19/2011 7018 PAM BLAIR 120.00
12/19/2011 7019 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 124.44
12/19/2011 7020 RIZZI DESIGNS 6,489.75
12/19/2011 7021 H.C. BERGER COMPANY 181.62
12/19/2011 7022 HASSELBRING CLARK CO 119.33
12/19/2011 7023 GANNETT MICHIGAN NEWSPAPERS 568.50
12/19/2011 7024 CITY PULSE 879.30
12/19/2011 7025 MARTINEZ CONSULTING GROUP 150.00
12/19/2011 7026 PACE & PARTNERS INC 3,480.00
12/19/2011 7027 THE CENTER FOR COMMUNITY PROGRESS 1,000.00
12/19/2011 7028 GREATER LANSING HOUSING COALITION 1,440.00
12/19/2011 7029 AD'VANTAGE CLEANING 454.36
12/19/2011 7030 GRANGER LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 10.00
12/19/2011 7031 KEBS, INC. 800.00
12/19/2011 7032 ETC 1,225.00
12/19/2011 7033 VOID 0.00
12/19/2011 7034 LAWN SPRINKLERS SALES,SERVICE & DES 360.00
12/19/2011 7035 HAZEN LUMBER, INC. 1,133.21
12/19/2011 7036 AMERICAN RENTALS INC. 88.00

12/19/2011 7037 STANDARD ELECTRIC COMPANY 116.24
12/19/2011 7038 J & M HAULING 625.00
12/19/2011 7039 VOID 0.00
12/19/2011 7040 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 159.33
12/19/2011 7041 ELIEFF BROTHERS ROOFING INC 2,350.00
12/19/2011 7042 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING 1,505.00
12/19/2011 7043 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING 842.00
12/19/2011 7044 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 500.00
12/19/2011 7045 NORTHERN HOME IMPROVEMENT 43,514.25
12/19/2011 7046 METRO DEVELOPMENT CORP. 77,261.62
12/19/2011 7047 BAKER BUILDERS, INC 101,586.00
12/19/2011 7048 MICHIGAN BUILDING AND RESTORATION 11,600.00



12/19/2011 7049 GRACE AT HOME 58,317.50
12/19/2011 7050 TURN KEY HOME IMPROVEMENT 44,553.50
12/19/2011 7051 THOMAS J KRYCINSKI BUILDERS 13,742.00
12/19/2011 7052 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 14,601.00
12/19/2011 7053 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 34,657.00
12/19/2011 7054 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 2,860.00
12/19/2011 7055 HOMEVIEW IMPROVEMENTS 33,687.50
12/19/2011 7056 PROGRESSIVE REMODELING 2,233.80
12/19/2011 7057 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 15,191.00
12/19/2011 7058 SPARTAN METAL AND DESIGN, LLC 424.00
12/19/2011 7059 RBK BUILDING MATERIALS 289.03
12/19/2011 7060 VET'S ACE HARDWARE 271.83
12/19/2011 7061 TOM HORVATH 2,608.00
12/19/2011 7062 CENTER FOR FINANCIAL HEALTH 2,400.00
12/19/2011 7063 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,690.00
12/19/2011 7064 INTEGRITY LAWN MAINTENANCE 3,660.00
12/19/2011 7065 MCKISSIC CONSTRUCTION 2,280.00
12/19/2011 7066 FRITZY'S LAWN & SNOW 1,320.00
12/19/2011 7067 EARTH TONES LANDSCAPING INC 940.00
12/19/2011 7068 ALL STAR SNOW REMOVAL 940.00
12/19/2011 7069 HOLISTIC LANDSCAPE, INC 940.00
12/19/2011 7070 MARY RUTTAN 577.73
12/19/2011 7071 JOSEPH G BONSALL 1,017.10
12/19/2011 7072 LINDA SCHONBERG 121.93
12/19/2011 7073 MARTY LEJEUNE 41.64
12/19/2011 7074 KARL FOFANA 275.84
12/19/2011 7075 DENNIS GRAHAM 146.61
12/19/2011 7076 JOSEPH E ROBIADEK 381.84
12/19/2011 7077 LANSING CITY TREASURER 31,026.98
12/19/2011 7078 LANSING CITY TREASURER 31,606.98
12/19/2011 7079 LANSING CITY TREASURER 26,691.85
12/19/2011 7080 LANSING CITY TREASURER 16,135.88
12/19/2011 7081 LANSING CITY TREASURER 335.43
12/19/2011 7082 LANSING CITY TREASURER 320.57
12/19/2011 7083 LANSING CITY TREASURER 314.97
12/19/2011 7084 LANSING CITY TREASURER 69.69
12/19/2011 7085 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING 762.11
12/19/2011 7086 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING 990.47
12/19/2011 7087 DELHI TOWNSHIP 2,069.06
12/20/2011 7088 AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY 240.00
12/20/2011 7089 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 3,020.87

Total Checks 1,383,430.31



02/01/2012 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2012 - 01/31/2012

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount

Bank GEN
01/03/2012 7090 PNC BANK, NA 12,831.98
01/05/2012 7091 CONSUMERS ENERGY 162.19
01/05/2012 7092 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 475.73
01/05/2012 7093 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 639.71
01/05/2012 7094 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 521.86
01/05/2012 7095 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 583.24
01/05/2012 7096 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 323.56
01/05/2012 7097 DELHI TOWNSHIP 13.00
01/05/2012 7098 COMCAST 59.95
01/05/2012 7099 AT & T 228.11
01/05/2012 7100 ADT SECURITY SERVICES, INC 121.84
01/05/2012 7101 CITY OF LANSING, C.A.R.T. 43.00
01/05/2012 7102 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 138.17
01/05/2012 7103 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 3,189.29
01/05/2012 7104 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 197.74
01/05/2012 7105 EDEN GLEN CONDO ASSOCIATION 6,960.00
01/05/2012 7106 SOIL AND MATERIALS ENGINEERS, INC. 441.16
01/05/2012 7107 RIZZI DESIGNS 4,564.40
01/05/2012 7108 DARLING BUILDERS SUPPLY CO 900.00
01/05/2012 7109 GLASS BLOCK AND MORE 125.00
01/05/2012 7110 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 207.68
01/05/2012 7111 WISEMAN TREE EXPERTS 2,130.00
01/05/2012 7112 J & M HAULING 390.00
01/05/2012 7113 AD'VANTAGE CLEANING 1,269.32
01/05/2012 7114 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF PLANNING 150.00
01/05/2012 7115 OLD TOWN COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATION 150.00
01/05/2012 7116 LIBERTY MUTUAL GROUP 524.00
01/05/2012 7117 FOX BROTHERS COMPANY 4,432.98
01/05/2012 7118 RZ TRENCHING & MORE 350.00
01/05/2012 7119 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 4,478.69
01/05/2012 7120 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 9,984.00
01/05/2012 7121 DAVIS GLASS & SCREEN 633.79
01/05/2012 7122 GREGORY LEE MCKAY LLC 2,840.00
01/05/2012 7123 TOM HORVATH 4,649.00
01/05/2012 7124 HOLT ELECTRIC & SON 6,790.00
01/05/2012 7125 DICK CORTRIGHT 575.00
01/05/2012 7126 ETC 980.00
01/05/2012 7127 ORACLE RESIDENTIAL SERVICES LLC 1,375.00
01/05/2012 7128 KEBS, INC. 400.00
01/05/2012 7129 THERMAL INSPECTION SERVICE LLC 100.00
01/05/2012 7130 BAKER BUILDERS, INC 53,216.00
01/05/2012 7131 THOMAS J KRYCINSKI BUILDERS 7,762.00
01/05/2012 7132 NORTHERN HOME IMPROVEMENT 19,790.75
01/05/2012 7133 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 91,827.00
01/05/2012 7134 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 20,284.00
01/05/2012 7135 QUALIFIED CONSTRUCTION CORP 31,826.00



01/05/2012 7136 TURN KEY HOME IMPROVEMENT 32,087.75
01/05/2012 7137 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 46,335.00
01/05/2012 7138 GRACE AT HOME 24,447.50
01/05/2012 7139 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 12,845.00
01/05/2012 7140 FIRST CONTRACTING INC 170,783.90
01/05/2012 7141 LABREN'S LAWN & SNOW 940.00
01/05/2012 7142 SCHUMACHER'S FOUR SEASONS 4,490.00
01/05/2012 7143 DENNIS GRAHAM 243.59
01/05/2012 7144 ERIC SCHERTZING 1,492.77
01/05/2012 7145 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,600.00
01/05/2012 7146 INGHAM COUNTY HOUSING COMMISSION 25,023.12
01/06/2012 7147 POSTMASTER 220.00
01/19/2012 7148 CONSUMERS ENERGY 778.70
01/19/2012 7149 CONSUMERS ENERGY 712.33
01/19/2012 7150 CONSUMERS ENERGY 814.91
01/19/2012 7151 CONSUMERS ENERGY 415.83
01/19/2012 7152 CONSUMERS ENERGY 1,195.87
01/19/2012 7153 CONSUMERS ENERGY 1,119.57
01/19/2012 7154 CONSUMERS ENERGY 1,058.44
01/19/2012 7155 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 589.99
01/19/2012 7156 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 780.99
01/19/2012 7157 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 739.30
01/19/2012 7158 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 264.84
01/19/2012 7159 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 211.23
01/19/2012 7160 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 91.28
01/19/2012 7161 SPRINT 251.39
01/19/2012 7162 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 242.14
01/19/2012 7163 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 222.01
01/19/2012 7164 COMCAST 66.95
01/19/2012 7165 MICHGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5,898.00
01/19/2012 7166 RBK BUILDING MATERIALS 5,619.97
01/19/2012 7167 GANNETT MICHIGAN NEWSPAPERS 224.17
01/19/2012 7168 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 1,703.35
01/19/2012 7169 BS&A SOFTWARE 2,095.00
01/19/2012 7170 MARTINEZ CONSULTING GROUP 180.00
01/19/2012 7171 H.C. BERGER COMPANY 168.26
01/19/2012 7172 HASSELBRING CLARK CO 163.96
01/19/2012 7173 SWANSON DESIGN STUDIOS 2,643.75
01/19/2012 7174 ORACLE RESIDENTIAL SERVICES LLC 275.00
01/19/2012 7175 ETC 1,225.00
01/19/2012 7176 CITY PULSE 972.00
01/19/2012 7177 THERMAL INSPECTION SERVICE LLC 900.00
01/19/2012 7178 VET'S ACE HARDWARE 256.77
01/19/2012 7179 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 1,086.38
01/19/2012 7180 STANDARD ELECTRIC COMPANY 839.48
01/19/2012 7181 AMERICAN RENTALS INC. 88.00
01/19/2012 7182 FOX BROTHERS COMPANY 745.18
01/19/2012 7183 GRANGER LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 65.00
01/19/2012 7184 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 4,949.01
01/19/2012 7185 J & M HAULING 2,475.00
01/19/2012 7186 TOM HORVATH 3,060.00
01/19/2012 7187 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING 75.00



01/19/2012 7188 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 6,300.00
01/19/2012 7189 GREGORY LEE MCKAY LLC 4,500.00
01/19/2012 7190 KEBS, INC. 4,400.00
01/19/2012 7191 C&K SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 80.00
01/19/2012 7192 KOHLER EXPOS, INC. 305.00
01/19/2012 7193 LANSING ENTERTAINMENT & FACILITIES 55.00
01/19/2012 7194 HAZEN LUMBER, INC. 12,203.02
01/19/2012 7195 MARK'S LOCK SHOP INC 57.50
01/19/2012 7196 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 254.48
01/19/2012 7197 CURSOR CONTROL INC 950.00
01/19/2012 7198 PAM BLAIR 120.00
01/19/2012 7199 AD'VANTAGE CLEANING 327.36
01/19/2012 7200 HICKORY CORNERS GREENHOUSE 216.00
01/19/2012 7201 DICK CORTRIGHT 2,630.00
01/19/2012 7202 DEMAND INDUSTRIAL, LLC 12,700.00
01/19/2012 7203 SC SERVICES ENVIRONMENTAL 3,335.00
01/19/2012 7204 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 32,479.00
01/19/2012 7205 METRO DEVELOPMENT CORP. 61,614.29
01/19/2012 7206 HOMEVIEW IMPROVEMENTS 37,818.00
01/19/2012 7207 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 74,756.00
01/19/2012 7208 THOMAS J KRYCINSKI BUILDERS 20,611.25
01/19/2012 7209 GRACE AT HOME 17,102.50
01/19/2012 7210 MICHIGAN BUILDING AND RESTORATION 16,000.00
01/19/2012 7211 NORTHERN HOME IMPROVEMENT 19,947.50
01/19/2012 7212 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 15,645.00
01/19/2012 7213 TURN KEY HOME IMPROVEMENT 9,512.00
01/19/2012 7214 LAWN SPRINKLERS SALES,SERVICE & DES 8,218.75
01/19/2012 7215 LEN'S CARPET CARE & CONSULTANTS 2,658.82
01/19/2012 7216 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 31,979.05
01/19/2012 7217 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 9,503.74
01/19/2012 7218 INGHAM COUNTY HOUSING COMMISSION 400.20
01/19/2012 7219 GREATER LANSING HOUSING COALITION 1,440.00
01/19/2012 7220 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,590.00
01/19/2012 7221 JOSEPH G BONSALL 693.11
01/19/2012 7222 MELISSA LOTT 38.83
01/19/2012 7223 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 84,687.70
01/19/2012 7224 LANSING CITY TREASURER 210.23
01/19/2012 7225 LANSING CITY TREASURER 17,880.04
01/19/2012 7226 LANSING CITY TREASURER 27,188.94
01/19/2012 7227 LANSING CITY TREASURER 17,284.04
01/19/2012 7228 LANSING CITY TREASURER 15,806.44
01/19/2012 7229 LANSING CITY TREASURER 23,685.06
01/19/2012 7230 LANSING CITY TREASURER 18,145.25
01/19/2012 7231 LANSING CITY TREASURER 4,578.92

GEN TOTAL of 142 Non-Void Checks: 1,285,315.84
GEN TOTAL of 0 Void Checks: 0.00
GEN TOTAL - 142 Checks: 1,285,315.84



02/01/2012 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NOVEMBER 30, 2011

Assets
Cash $ 228,352.91
Payroll 22,547.66
Accounts Receivable 747.00
Land Contract Receivable 1,514,456.71
Land Contract Interest Receivable 15,030.80
Land Contract Escrow 16,866.42
Acquisition Account Earnest Deposit 5,000.00
Notes Receivable 360,000.00
Specific Tax Receivable 4,390.41
Specific Tax Receivable-Prior Year 3,414.87
OCOF Nonprofit Receivable 9,087.21
Ingham County Receivable-General 6,744.52
NSP1 Lansing City Receivable 16,856.68
Lansing City Receivable-General 5,451.68
MSHDA Receivable 571,050.00
Inventory 3,793,810.24
Total Assets $6,573,807.11

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 105,461.69
Notes Payable

PNC Bank 3,790,000.00
Due to Ingham County 623,825.61
Rental Deposit 8,400.00
Good Faith Deposits 1,000.00
Land Contract Escrow 12,894.67

Total Liabilities $4,541,581.97

Retained Earnings $1,705,078.08

Total Net Assets $ 327,147.06



STATE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NOVEMBER 30, 2011

Revenues

Property Sales 1,492,910.88
Brownfield Revenue 1,598,437.23
NSP1 Lansing City Revenue 887,883.07
NSP2 Lansing Reinvestment 285,776.09
NSP2 MSHDA Adm. Fee Revenue 54,635.99
NSP2 MSHDA Revenue 5,270,555.00
NSP2 Program Income 244,000.00
NSP County Revenue 4,124.53
Specific Tax Revenue 14,852.77
Garden Project Revenue 40.00
Property Maintenance Revenue 1,500.00
Revenue Transfer 250,000.00
Home Revenue 72,799.13
Donations 20.00
Interest Income 89,089.29
Rental Income 27,050.00
Development Fee Income 194,506.92
Late Fee Revenue 1,064.96
Miscellaneous Income 548.48
Youth Build Revenue 21,173.95

Total Revenue $10,510,968.29

Operating Expenses

Cost of Land Sold 3,058,001.30
Supplies 10,934.77
Audit Fee 8,500.00
Communication 4,228.29
Security 400.52
Memberships 1,603.00
Rent Expense 7,800.00
Equipment-Small Purchase 4,246.86
Postage 1,282.75
Recording Fees 10.00
Seller Concessions 3,369.77
Media 22,824.40
Housing Counseling 300.00
Interior Staging 7,591.92
Renovation 8,468.87

Operating Expense Continued



Consultants 25,787.45
Bank Fees 260.84
Legal 9,656.61
Contractual Service 78,639.24
Software 1,191.42
Property Insurance 7,863.90
Bicycle Share Program 3,181.13
Travel 8,406.29
Professional Training/Conference 1,410.70
Job Creation 375.00
Payroll Reimbursement 100,326.73
Americorp Member 8,709.25
Employer Tax Liability 6,222.68
Payroll Service 521.42
Workers Compensation 4,134.46
Utilities 2,040.05
Building Maintenance 17,268.58
Lawn/Snow 1,335.00
Brownfield Debt Expense 119,068.76
Interest Expense 46,587.35
Land Contract Default 201,871.74
Garden Project 11,157.17
HOME Lansing City 14,985.69
NSP1 Lansing City 1,074,724.78
NSP Ingham County 6,805.24
NSP II 5,126.178.44
NSP2 Program Income Expense 165,548.86

Total Expense $10,183,821.23

Total Net Assets, end of period $ 327,147.06


